
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No.

18 U.S.C. j 1349
18 U.S.C. j 981(a)(1)(C)

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ,
a/k/a Etpavel Ruiz,''

Defendant.
/

INFORM ATION

The United States Attorney charges that:

GENER AL ALLEGATIONS

At al1 times relevant to tllis Information:

Relevant Term s

also called an GGM CA,'' is a form of altem ative

tinancing that provides a business fast access to ftznds based on their previous income or sales. An

M CA company typically provides the client business, referred to as a tçmerchant,'' upâont

financing in exchange for a portion of the merchant's futtzre receivables at a discotmt or fixed

A tûmerchant cash advance,''

periodic payments taken directly from the merchant's bank accotmt. M CA financing is typically

used by small and medium-sized businesses in need of short-term financing. Although M CA

financing is often m ore expensive than traditional sm all business loans, it is often faster and easier

to obtain.

A Gs onzi'' or ''Ponzi schem e'' is an investm ent f'raud schem e that involves the

paym ent of claim ed returns to existing investors from  ftmds contributed by new investors. Ponzi
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scheme organizers often solicit new investors by promising to invest funds in opportunities

claimed to generate ltigh returns with little or no risk. ln many Ponzi schemes, the participants

focus on attracting new investments to make promised payments to earlier-stage investors to create

the false appearance that investors are profiting fw m a legitimate business. Ponzi schem es require

a consistent flow of new investor funds to continue and tend to collapse when it becomes difficult

to obtain sufficient new investor funds or when a large nllmber of investors ask for their investment

principal back.

The Defendant and the Relevant Entities

MJ Capital Funding, LLC (EIMJ Capital'') was a Florida limited liability company

with its listed place of business in Pompano Beach, Florida. Co-conspirator 1 fotmded M J Capital

in or around Jtme 2020.

Pavel Ruiz MJCF LLC (lGpavel Ruiz MJCF'') was a Florida limited liability

company with its listed place of business in Plantation, Florida. Defendant PA'VEL RAM ON

RUIZ HERNANDEZ, a/k/a RPa#eI Ruizr'' founded Pavel Ruiz M JCF in or arotmd M arch 2021

4.

and was its sole m ember.

5. Co-conspirator 1, a resident of Broward County, Florida, was an authorized

member, and the President and Chief Executive Officer (G:CEO'') of MJ Capital. Co-conspirator

1 exercised ultimate control over the operations of M J Capital and maintained significant

involvement in the company's daily operations.

PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ H ERNANDEZ, a resident of Broward County, Florida,

helped Co-conspirator 1 manage the operations of M J Capital.
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COUNT 1
Conspiracy to Com m it W ire Fraud

(18 U.S.C. j 1349)-

The General Allegations section of this Information is realleged alld fully

incorporated herein by reference.

2. From at least as early as in or around M arch 2021, and continuing through on or

about August 12, 2021, in M iami-Dade and Broward Counties, in the Southern District of Florida,

and elsewhere, the defendant,

PAVEL RAM ON RIJIz H ERNANDEZ,
a/k/a ddpavel Ruiz ''

did willfully, that is, with the intent to further the object of the conspiracy, and knowingly

combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with Co-conspirator 1, and with others lcnown and

llnknown to the United States Attorney, to knowingly, and with the intent to degaud, devise, and

intend to devise, a scheme and artifice to defraud, and to obtain money and property by means of

materially false and âaudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, knowing such pretenses,

representations, and prom ises were false and fraudulent when made, and for the purpose of

executing such scheme and artifice to defraud, did knowingly transmit and cause to be transmitted,

by m eans of wire com mtm ications in interstate and foreign comm erce, certain m itings, signs,

signals, pictures, and solmds, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

Purpose of the Conspiracv

lt was a purpose of the conspiracy for the defendant and his co-conspirators to

unlawfully emich themselves by: (a) inducing investors to invest in MJ Capital thzough materially

false and fraudulent representations and promises concerning the nature of the M J Capital

investm ent, the finances, operation, and profitability of M J Capital, atld the use of investor funds;

3
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(b) diverting investor f'unds to bank accounts under their control; and (c) using investor funds for

their own personal use atld benefit, and to make payments to earlier investors.

M anner and M eans of the Conspiracv

The naanner and naeans by yvhich the defendant and his co-conspirators sought to

accomplish the purpose and object of the conspiracy included, nmong others, the following:

4. M J Capital purportedly engaged in the business of providing merchant cash

advances (MCAs) to businesses in Florida and throughout the United States in exchange for agreed

upon periodic payments over a specified period of time. MJ Capitalpromoted its M CAS as a short-

term , high-cost, altem ative financing solution for sm all mld m edillm -sized businesses that needed

fast up-front funding.

PAVEL M M ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ and his co-conspirators, directly and

indirectly, fraudulently solicited money from investors pup ortedly to fund M J Capital's M CAS

by falsely promising significant rettums, typically 10% per month (an nnnual rate of 120?/4.

PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ and his co-conspirators, thzough M J

Capital, falsely and fraudulently claim ed that M J Capital's investment offerings permitted

investors to Glptzrchase'' a portion of merchants' futtlre receivables. M J Capital instructed its

personnel and affiliates to use the tenn iGmerchatlt'' instead of l<borrower,'' tûorder payment'' instead

of <çloan nmount'' or G1 dncipal '' ç; urchaser'' instead of Gûinvestor '' and &G urchase of futlzreP , P , P
!

receivables'' instead of Gtinvestm ent.''

PAVEL M M ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ and lzis co-conspirators, directly and

indirectly, recruited individuals to solicit investors to invest in M J Capital's investment offelings

at various locations in M iam i-Dade and Broward Counties, in the Southern District of Florida. As

pal't of the effort to raise additional investor f'unds, PAVEL R AM ON RUIZ TTERNANDEZ and

4
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his co-conspirators incentivized these individuals by offering and paying substantial commissions,

typically 10% per month of the nmolmt of investor funds raised (an nnnual rate of 12014.

Persons raising ftmds for MJ Capital were called GGaccount representatives.''

Successful account representatives could .be promoted to Gtmanagers.'' Account representatives

and m anagers were organized into groups within M J Capital, with each group overseen by a ttboard

member.'' PAVEL M M ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ was a board member of M J Capital.

9. To induce investors to invest in M J Capital, PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ

H ERNANDEZ and his co-conspirators, directly and indirectly, made materially false and

fraudulent statements and representations to investors concerning the nature of the M J Capital

investment, the finances, operation, and profitability of M J Capital, and the use of investor funds,

including, among others, the following:

M ateriallv False Representations

(a) that the investor's money would be used to fund MJ Capital's MCAS,'

(b) that investor returns would be paid from the profits of MJ Capital's MCA business;

that M J Capital had a minimal rate of default on its M CAS and that it had a system

in place to collect payment on the M CAS, including using tmderwriters to vet

m erchants soliciting loans, liens to sectlre loans, and lawyers to collect payment

when necessary; and

(d). that MJ Capital's MCA business was sufficiently robust and profitable to be the

solzrce of the investor rettlrns and to guarantee investors' capital.

PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ, his co-conspirators, and others, on

behalf of M J Capital, provided and entered into written investment agreem ents with investors.
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These investment agreements made materially false and f'raudulent statements and representations

to investors, including concerning the use of investor funds and the source of investor retum s.

Based on false and fraudulent representations, PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ

HERNANDEZ received and collected M J Capital investor funds in cash and deposits via check

and electronic bnnk transfers, including interstate wire communicationsp into various accotmts,

including Pavel Ruiz M JCF'S bank accounts,.

Notwithstanding PAVEL RAM UN RUIZ HERNANDEZ and llis co-

conspirator's false and fraudulent representations to investors regarding the nature of the MJ

Capital investm ent, the finances, operation, and profitability of M J Capital, and the use of investor

funds, M J Capital only funded a few M CAS and failed to ealm anywhere nea.r the profits it needed

to pay the investor returns and principal prom ised investors.As a result, RUIZ HERNANDEZ

and his co-conspirators paid investor returns by nmning a large Ponzi scheme, paying existing

investors using new investor funds.

W hile continuing to solicit new investm ents, PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ

TTERNANDEZ and llis co-conspirators misappropdated existing M J Capital investor fllnds for

their own personal use and benefit. In fact, RUIZ HERNANDEZ misappropdated millions of

dollars to pay for, nmong other things, personal expenses, luxury goods, vehicles, vacations, and

x entertainm ent, and to m ake personal investm ents.

14. PAVEL RAM UN RUIZ HERNANDEZ and l'lis co-conspizators never informed

M J Capital investors that they diverted investor funds for their own personal use and benefit and

to pay investor rettzrns. Instead, RUIZ HERNANDEZ and his co-conspirators falsely and

fraudulently represented to investors that investm ent funds were being used to fund M CA loans.

15. As a result of PAVEL'R AM ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ'S and his co-conspirators'
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material misrepresentations regarding the profitability of M J Capital's M CA business and the use

of investor funds, from in or around M arch 2021, through in or around August 2021, RUIZ

HERNANDEZ falsely and fraudulently obtained at least approximately $42,942,000 dollars from

retail investors in the Southern District of Florida and elsewhere.

Al1 in violation of Title 18, Ulzited States Code, Section 1349.

FORFEITURE
(18 U.s.C. j 981(a)(1)(C))

The allegations of this Information are hereby re-alleged and by this reference fully

incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of America of certain

property in which the defendant, PAVEL RAM ON RUIZ HERNANDEZ, has an interest.

Upon conviction of a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349, as

alleged in this Information, the defendant shall forfeit to the United States any property, real or

personal, which constitm es or is derived from proceeds traceable to such offense, ptlrsuant to Title

18, United States Code, Section 981(a)(1)(C).

The property subject to forfeitme as a result of the alleged offense includes, but is

not limited to, the following:

a. A forfeiture money judgement in the sum of $42,942,000 in U.S. currency,
which s'lm represents the value of the property that is subject to forfeiture;

Al1 ftmds on deposit in .TP M organ Chase accotmt number 410633486, held
in the name of Pavel Ruiz;

A1l funds on deposit in Citibnnk account nllmber 3198002403, held in the
nnm e of Pavel Ramon Ruiz Hernandez, or seized from  this accotmt on or
about September 2, 2021;

A11 funds on deposit in Citibank account nllmber 3490145105, held in the
nnme of Pavel Ruiz M JCF LLC, or seized f'rom this account on or about
September 2, 2021;
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A11 funds on deposit in Citibank accotmt number 3290405412, held in the
name of Pavel Ruiz M JCF LLC, or seized from this account on or about
September 2, 2021;

Al1 fands on deposit in W ells Fargo accotmt nllm ber 144810330, held in the
nam e of Pavel R Ruiz Hernandez;

A11 funds on deposit in Venmo account @pavel-lluiz-l, held in the nnme of
Pavel Ruiz;

h. Al1 ftmds on deposit in Venmo account @Pave1RuizMJCF, held in the name
of Pavel Ruiz M JCF LLC; and

One (1) 2021 Audi RS7, beming vehicle identification ntzmber
W UAPCBF24M N907100.

lf any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or omission of the

defendant:

a. cnnnot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

has been placed beyond the jtlrisdiction of the court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

has been commingled with other property wllich cannot be divided without

difficulty,

the Urlited States shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property under the provisions of Title

21, United States Code, Section 853û$.

8
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Al1 plzrsuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)(1)(C) and the procedures set

forth in Title 21, United States Code, Section 853, as incop orated by Title 28, United States Code,

Section 2461(c)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA CASE NO.:

PAVEL RAMON RUIZ HERNANDEZ,
a/k/a ''Pavel Ruiz,''

/
Defendant.

Court Division (select one)
Z Miami EI Key W est D FTP
ID FTL IZI W PB

1 do hereby certify that:
1 . I have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the number of probable

witnesses and the legal complexities of the lndictment/lnformation attached hereto.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTORNEY*

Superseding Case Information:

New Defendantts) (Yes or No)
Num ber of New Defendants
Total number of New Counts

1 am aware that the information supplied on this statement will be relied upon by the Judges of this Court in setting
their calendars and scheduling criminal trials under the mandate of the Speedy Trial Act, Title 28 U.S.C. j3161.

lnterpreter: (Yes or No) No
List language and/or dialect:

TMs case will take 0 days for the padies to try.

Please check appropriate category and type of offense listed below:
(Check only one) (Check only one)
I Z O to 5 days IZI petty
11 lZ'l 6 to 10 days EI M inor
III EI 1 1 to 20 days L. M isdemeanor
IV E1 21 to 60 days z. Felony
V IQ 61 days and over

Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) No
lf yes, Judge Case No.
Has a complaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No) No
lf yes, M agistrate Case No.

8. Does this case relate to a previously filed matter in this District Court? (Yes or No) No
If yes, Judge Case No.

9. Defendantts) in federal custody as of
10. Defendantts) in state custody as of
1 1 . Rule 20 from the District of
12. Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) No
l3. Does this case originate from a mattèr pending in the Northern Region of the U .S. Attorney's Office

prior to August 8, 2014 (Mag. Judge Shaniek Maynard? (Yes or No) No
Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the U.S. Attom ey's Office
prior to October 3, 2019 (Mag. Judge Jared Strauss? @ es or No) No

*'

ô 1 ?By: JAJ 
.W

Eric E. M orales
Assistant Upited States Attorney
FLA Bar No. 1010791
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTH ERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: PAVEL RAM ON RUIz H ERNANDEZ, a/lt/a dtpavel Ruiz''

Case No:

Cotmt #:

Title 18. United States Codes Section 1349

Conspiracv to Commit W ire Fraud
* M ax. Term of Im prisonm ent: 20 years
* Mandatory Min. Term of Imprisonment (if applicable): N/A
* M ax. Supervised Release: 3 years
* M ax. Fine: $250,000 fme or twice the gross loss nmount

RRefers only to possible term of incarceration, supervised release and fines. It does not include
restitution, special assessments, parole ferms, or forfeitures that may be applicable.
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